
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 20 March 2023 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record  

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Minutes of meeting held on 20 February 2023 and matters arising  

 
(Pages 2 - 6) 

4   Waste Contract Performance and Future Recycling Strategies 
(David Seager - Asst Dir, Operational & Community Services/ 
Head of Service, Streetscene and Parks)  

 

(Pages 7 - 23) 

5   Proposed Litter and Fly Tipping Task and Finish Group - 

Discussion  

 

 

6   Work Programme 2022/23  

 

(Pages 24 - 27) 

7   Any other business  

 

 

8   Next Meeting Monday 15 May 2023 at 2.00 pm TBC  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 

Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

 20 February 2023 
 

 Meeting commenced: 2.00 p.m. 
 “                  ended: 3:40 p.m. 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Dickman - in the Chair 

Councillors Barnes, Brabiner, Fletcher, Karen Garrido, Mullen,  
Gina Reynolds and Walters.  
 

Councillor Barbara Bentham* - Lead Member for Environment, 
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety 

Councillor David Lancaster* - Executive Support, Environment, 
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety 
 

OFFICERS:  Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Officer 
                     Shari Bowes* - Principal Policy Officer 

                     Elliot Hogan* - Acting Elections Manager 
                      
                    *Attended via Teams  

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Boshell, Wain, Ward 
and Warner. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS  
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 16 January 2023, were approved as 
a correct record. 
 

4. THE SALFORD WAY UPDATE 
(Previous Minute 4 - 21 March 2022) 

 
Shari Bowes gave a presentation which provided an update on progress being made 
in delivering three of the City’s key strategies, as part of The Salford Way approach to 

tackling inequalities, namely: 
 

 Tackling Poverty Strategy  

 Inclusive and Green and Economy Strategy  

 Equality and Inclusion Strategy 

 
All three strategies had been launched in 2021, following extensive engagement with 

partners in the public, private and voluntary, community and social enterprise sectors, 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



and each of the associated action plans had been developed to support 
implementation.  

 
Members raised issues, commented on, and noted them, as follows: 

 
(a) What support and advice was provided to assist and encourage 

householders to switch to new alternative green sustainable energy? This 

was an issue which would be taken away. 
 

(b) The need for disabled/step free access at Eccles and Walkden railway 
stations, with existing plans for this being currently on hold until 2030. This 

was an issue which would be taken away and highlighted with the Equalities Group. 

It was a fundamental principle that public transport should be accessible to all. It 
was often those from disadvantaged communities who depended most heavily on 

such services, 
 

(c) Clarification was sought on the “Reverse Mentoring Scheme”. This was duly 

provided and explained it was a method for service users, primarily younger people 
from disadvantage communities, sharing with senior service providers real life 

experiences and feedback, representing a reversal of the traditional top down fact 
finding approach. The scheme was due to be implemented in June 2023, after 
which it was suggested, the Panel be provided with an update giving an evaluation 

of its initial impact. 
 

(d) It was suggested resources should be focussed on providing facilities and 
resources for those communities/individuals who wished to learn English, 
as an alternative to investing in translation services, representing a more 

long-term and sustainable approach. This was an issue which would be taken 

away and examined further, though there would always be a place for translation, 

particularly when a situation required a reactive and rapid dissemination of 
advice/information.  

 
(e) Were there any generational and gender links/causes to barriers to learning 

English? There were such links, but every effort was made to overcome them. 

 
(f) Reference was made to data suggesting a decline in people aged 40-69 living 

in Salford, particularly Boothstown. Concerns were expressed at the 

possible long term impact this, both in terms of an “unbalanced” population 
age wise, and the impact on the local economy in losing people from this 

“active/working” age group. It was asked whether poor public transport links 
and traffic congestion were a factor in members of this age group leaving 
Salford? This was one of the many issues identified by the data from the national 

census 2021 which was currently being analysed, so that needs of City Council 
services could be tailored accordingly to provide solutions.  There were likely to be 

a myriad of reasons for the decline in the 40-69 age group, which hopefully the 
analysis would reveal. 

 
(g) What support was provided to, and engagement undertaken with, those with 

visual impairment issues? Engagement with all communities was vital and 

formed part quality impact assessments undertaken for all initiatives. 

Page 3



 
(h) The lack of community facilities and engagement with people aged 70 and 

over, particularly in Boothstown and Worsley and the issues this created 
around possible social isolation. Social isolation was recognised and 

consequently a factor in quality impact assessments for initiatives to ensure it was 
considered and addressed. This was a specific issue, which would be raised with 
several different services and engagement teams across the City Council, 

 
(i) The reasons why, according to recent data, less people were apparently 

identifying as Jewish, despite Salford having the largest Jewish community 
outside of London. Councillor Andrew Walters provided background on this and 

the possible historical/cultural reasons around members of the Jewish community 

being reluctant to complete “ethnicity” sections of censuses and questionnaires. 
 

(j) By what means was it intended to open opportunities for greater citizen 
partnership in local democracy? There was a commitment to achieve this for 

which several forthcoming City Council initiatives would act as conduit for and 

hopefully encourage greater community participation, particularly from members of 
communities where traditionally there was a reluctance to do so. 

 
(k) What work was being done to support people living with dementia? This 

was an important issue and one which needed to be raised both at a Salford and 

Greater Manchester level. 
 

(l) The decline in swimming provision in Salford. This was an issue which would 

be taken away and a response provided. 
 

RESOLVED:  (1) THAT the presentation the actions and progress to deliver Salford’s 
Tackling Poverty Strategy, Inclusive and Green Economy Strategy and Equalities and 

Inclusion Strategy be noted and the impact of the overall programme of work in 
achieving its strategic aims be welcomed and thanks extended to all those involved.   
 

   (2) THAT the Panel  revisit the Tackling Poverty, Inclusive and Green 
Economy and Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategies on an annual basis to review 

their continuing implementation and the progress made in achieving their agreed 
objectives.       
 

       (3) THAT an update on the Reverse Mentoring Scheme be provided 
following its planned introduction in June 2023. 

 
5. ELECTIONS ACT 2022 AND VOTER ID UPDATE 

(Previous Minute 7 - 21 November 2022) 

 
Eliot Hogan provided an update on Elections Act 2022, particularly the requirement for 

Voter ID and the implications of these, and Salford City Councils preparedness for 
their implementation at the forthcoming local election on 4 May 2023, and which 
focussed on the following key themes: 

 

 ID requirements 

 Voter Authority Certificates 

Page 4



 Advice and Communications 

 Staffing and Training 

 Accessibility     
 

Members raised issues, commented on, and noted them, as follows: 
 
(a) It was welcomed that Voter Authority Certificates were free of charge 
including no cost for the accompanying photograph. 

 
(b) The accuracy of data on the number of people who did not have the required 
ID was questioned, but it was noted that every effort was being made to raise 

awareness of this in terms of the May 2023 elections. 

 
(c) Concerns was expressed about polling station staff being subjected to verbal 

abuse, even physical violence, from persons who did not have the required ID 
and consequently aggrieved they had been refused and unable to vote. This was 

recognised and several plans and contingencies were in place to ensure staff safety. 
 
(d) Did the new ID requirements apply to postal votes? They did not for the 

forthcoming elections, but this could change in the future 
 
(e) Despite being prominent in Salford, Yiddish was not one of the languages 
used for translations of election documents materials. The selected languages 

had been determined at a Greater Manchester level, but this issue would be raised 

 
(f) As a paper document, it was suggested Voter Authority Certificates would 

have a much shorter lifespan than their intended one of 10 years. This likelihood 

of this was accepted and as a consequence, renewals would be much more frequent. 
 
(g) It was suggested that those areas of Salford with higher levels of depravation 
would be ones where people were less likely to have the necessary ID. This was 

recognised and there was  focus on raising awareness of the new voting requirements 
in such areas of the City. 
 
(h) Was any assistance provided to care homes to aid residents in voting? Such 

support and advice was provided. 

 
(i) Was it possible for elections to be conducted solely by postal voting? This 

had happened in the past but required the necessary H.M. Government legislation to 

do so again. 
 
(j) Did future elections in the UK include the introduction of electronic voting?  

In the short term there were no such proposals, and a switch to electronic voting would 
again need the passing of the necessary H.M. Government legislation  

 
RESOLVED:  THAT update be noted and a further one be provided provisionally in 

July 2023 on the management of the 4 May 2023 local elections particularly the impact 
of the introduction of voter ID requirements. 
 

 

Page 5



 
6. WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 
Members considered the Panel’s Work Programme for 2022/23.  

 
RESOLVED: (1) THAT the Panel’s Work Programme for 2022/23, be noted. 
 

  (2) THAT the following issues as detailed in the minutes respectively 
indicated be incorporated into the Panel’s Work programme: 

 

 February 2024 - Tackling Poverty, Inclusive and Green Economy and Salford 
Equality and Inclusion Strategies (see Minute 4(2)) 

 Post June 2023 - Reverse Mentoring Scheme (see Minute 4(3)) 

 Post July 2023 - May 2023 Elections – Update (see Minute 5) 

 
7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 20 March  
2023, commencing at 2.00 pm.  

 
 

 

Page 6



Presentation to Community & 

Neighbourhoods

Scrutiny Panel 
Waste Disposal Contract Performance

&

Future Recycling Strategies

David Robinson

Head of Service – Parks, Streetscene & Transport

20th March 2023

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



Greater Manchester 
Waste and Resources 
Performance Update

P
age 8



GMCA Waste & Resources
9 Waste

Collection Authorities 
(WCAs)

1 million 
households

50% Detached/Semi 
17% Flats

33% Terraced properties

2.6 million 
population

1.1 million tonnes p.a.
of municipal waste

P
age 9



Services separated into 2 Contracts -

1. Waste and Resources Management Services (WRMS) –

Services provided at main facility sites, situated in key geographical positions around the conurbation (incorporating WCA 

reception facilities with waste treatment and handing processes, plus Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs), on 

the same sites), also referred to as Lot 1:

4x Mechanical Treatment and Reception (MTR) Plants; 

1x Thermal Recovery Facility (TRF); 

1x Materials Recovery Facility (MRF); 

4x Biowaste Transfer Loading Stations (Bio TLS);

8x Transfer Loading Stations (TLS); and 

9x plant attached HWRCs

2. Household Waste Recycling Centre Management Services (HWRCMS) –

Incorporating operation of the remaining 11x HWRC sites that are stand alone – ie are not attached to the main plants in 

the WRMS Contract, also referred to as Lot 2

Suez Contracts

P
age 10



Suez Contracts – Targets

• HWRC Recycling Targets
1. WRMS Target = 60% from year 3 
2. HWRCMS Target = 60% from year 3 

• Landfill Diversion Targets 
1. 97.94% WRMS from year 3 (ie Landfill Cap at 2.06%)
2. 94.96% HWRCMS from year 3 (ie Landfill Cap at 5.04%)

• New recycling streams – Mattresses, Carpets, Street Sweepings and 
Rigid Plastics

• Reuse Hubs and shops with profit given back to communities

• Over 50 commitments in Social Value Plan

• Localised Procurement Plan and Off-take partners within GM

P
age 11



Contract Performance and 
Monitoring

• Performance and Data Analyst team responsible for collation; verification; analysis; and 
reporting to Contract outputs and for invoice verification

• Reporting – Contractual, local, regional and national statutory (Waste Data Flow)

• Internal Data reporting & analysis

• Tonnage Projections – for planning; contingency; and Levy Allocation Methodology 
Agreement (LAMA )

• Operational Contract performance is monitored by the Contract Management Team 
(CMT) against the Performance Management Framework (PMF) - 26 Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) calibrated as a disincentive for the Contractor to allow (or afford) 
Service failure on an ongoing basis (see Appendix A). 

• CMT Monitors visit all operational sites, over both Contracts, at least once fortnightly, on 
a varied (unannounced) rota 

• Areas of particular concern or interest are targeted in the monitoring regime to ensure 
operational service delivery and compliance with both the applicable Regulations and 
Contract requirements.

P
age 12



Performance – 2022/23 - Cumulative data Apr – Dec 2022 / 2023 Apr – Dec 2021 / 2022

OVERALL Combined Performance

Total arisings (t) 777,993.19 852,237.46 

Recycling Rate (%) 46.57% 46.75%

Diversion Rate (%) 99.17% 98.93%

HWRC Combined Performance

Recycling Rate (Household Waste) % 52.13% 49.63%

Diversion (Household Waste) % 97.68% 97.23%

WCA Recycling Collections

Rejected Kerbside Recycling Collections (t) 1,422.14 1,656.54 

MRF Contamination Rate (Commingled) % 14.47% 13.15%

Suez Contracts – Year to Date – Quarter 3 
(Apr – Dec 2022/ 23) Performance 

P
age 13



Disposal Contract 

Performance Summary

• HWRC Performance is below target and has not fully recovered 

post Covid i.e. 60% v 46.57%

• Overall Landfill Diversion Targets are above target i.e. av. 95% v 

99.17%

• Waste Arisings have reduced by 74,244 tonnes, in the last 12 

months

• Recycling Rate has also slightly reduced from 46.75% to 46.57%

• However, contaminated waste levels have reduced by 234 tonnes

• As a percentage, this has increased by 1.32% to 14.47%

P
age 14



FUTURE RECYCLING 

STRATEGIES

P
age 15



In September 2018 the Government published ~ ‘Our Waste, Our Resources: A 

Strategy for England’

The publication covers 4 areas :-

• Consistent waste & recycling collections

• Extended producer responsibility

• Deposit return scheme

• Plastic packaging tax

The indications are that the Government are moving forward on the next step of 

consultation in relation to the strategy.

Waste Management Plan 2021 

P
age 16



Waste Management Plan 2021

The overall aim of the strategy, is to ensure that England is 

committed to:-

➢ Reduced production of unnecessary products and packaging

➢ Reducing greenhouse gas emissions

➢ Reducing waste production

➢ Increasing recycling

➢ Reducing landfill

➢ Eliminating waste crime

P
age 17



English Resources and Waste Strategy

Extended 
Producer 

Responsibility 
for Packaging

Plastic 
Packaging 

Tax

Deposit 
Return 

Scheme

Consistent 
Collections

Paying for 

‘it’

Using more 

recycling

Recovering 

more 

recycling

Collecting 

what’s left 

better

x

P
age 18



Legal framework – Environment 
Act 2021

• As regards household recyclable waste, the Environment Act 
2021 amends the Environmental Protection Act 1995 to 
require that:

• recyclable household waste must be collected separately from 
other household waste;

• recyclable household waste must be collected for recycling or 
composting; and

• recyclable household waste in each recyclable waste stream must 
be collected separately, except so far as provided by subsection (6).

• And that:
• recyclable household waste which is food waste must be collected 

at least once a week.

P
age 19



Separate Food Waste Collections?

• In March 2023, DEFRA announced that ALL WCA’s 
would have to provide weekly separate Food waste 
collections by March 2025

• Waste Officers and Portfolio Elected Members have 
been “locked” in discussions with DEFRA, in attempting 
to explain that currently our Bio Service is best both 
environmentally & economically-so change not needed.

• SCC and the majority of other GM WCA’s, have 
submitted a request for “Transitional Arrangements", 
that would allow us to delay the implementation until 
2034-DEFRA decision awaited

P
age 20



Separate Food Waste Collections?

• The delay would allow existing disposal contracts to 
expire-possible £3m to £4m penalty for early exit

• Allows SCC to prepare for the potential increase in 
revenue & capital collection costs.

• Allows DEFRA to “possibly” reconsider their decision on 
the “benefits” of- Separate Food V Mixed Bio Waste

• Allows DEFRA to support SCC (and other WCA’s) in 
meeting those additional costs

• Allows SCC to consider the introduction of 
environmentally friendly bespoke vehicles, that are 
currently are either not available, and/or technology is 
its infancy

P
age 21



Future waste management

• Food and garden waste treated by dry AD – no need to currently 
change collections systems, give greater carbon benefit

• MRF modification to accept pots, tubs, trays and flexible plastics
• Potential to collect textiles, small WEEE and batteries at the 

kerbside
• Increase participation through comms campaigns
• Decrease contamination through comms campaigns
• Less confusion/greater participation as market adapts and 

reduces the number of plastic polymers
• Optimum balance between collection and disposal costs with 

increased recycling performance and carbon 

P
age 22



Summary

➢ The Waste Strategy, when introduced, will:-

▪ Reduced production of unnecessary products and packaging

▪ Reducing greenhouse gas emissions/carbon Offset

▪ Reducing waste production

▪ Increasing recycling

▪ Reducing landfill

▪ Eliminating waste crime

➢ However, Officers and Politicians alike, need to be mindful, of “too 

much, too soon", and whilst DEFRA’s aims are ambitious, the 

implications to our residents need to be borne, if when/changes are 

planned to be made.

➢ Finally, as always, robust Comm’s plans are essential, to ensure 

that Salford residents fully understand decisions, that are made, 

both by Local & Central Government e.g. DEFRA, that ultimately 

are for everyone's benefit both economically and environmentally. 

P
age 23



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 
SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 

Date 
 

Topic/Action Responsible officer(s) 

18 July 2022 

 

 SCL Overview and Impact  

 Citywide - Catering and Cleaning Overview  

 Fleet Management - Clean Air Regulations Compliance 

 

 

August  
 

No meeting - recess  

19 September 2022 

meeting cancelled 
 

  

17 October 2022 
 

 Pesticides Usage  

 Allotments  

 Pest Control  
 

 

21 November 2022 

 

 NRFs and Neighbourhood Management Update  

 Police overview in Salford 

 ID requirements for voting at UK elections  

 

 

December 2022 No meeting - Christmas 
 

 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 

16 January 2023 
 

 Bereavement Services  

 Food Safety  

 Salford City Council Emergency Planning and Business Continuity 
Approach 

 

 

20 February 2023 
 

 Salford Way and cost of living crisis including: 
o 12 month review of Tackling Poverty, Inclusive and Green 

Economy and Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategies 
(originally considered by Panel on 21/3/22) 

 

 

20 March 2023  Waste contract performance and future recycling strategies (originally 
scheduled for 19/9/22  

 Litter and Fly Tipping Task and Finish Group – Discussion 
 

 

April No meeting - run up to local election  

15 May 2022 TBC 
 

 findings of the independent third party review into water safety and 
unauthorised swimming at Salford Quays as commissioned by the City 
Mayor TBC 

 Salford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 2024/27 TBC 

 

 

P
age 25



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 

  
 

 
 
 

ABEYANCE LIST 

 

Landlord and Business Licensing - Overview and Effectiveness (in the interim Panel asked to identify 
specific themes and issues they wish to be briefed on and consider)  
 

 

Operation and impact of Salford City Council’s Street Champions scheme 
 

 

Protocol for Managing Unauthorised Encampments - current legislation and requirements of local 
authorities (information provided further consideration by Panel required to be confirmed) 
 

 

The following items are potential ones identified following a meeting with the Lead Member for Anti-Poverty, Neighbourhoods, 
Financial Inclusion and Equalities: 
 

Covid-19 Pandemic  

 “social” impact on older generation, isolation and access to services (particularly online ones)  

 Social inequalities identified  
 

 

Social inclusion   

 impact of Covid-19 particularly on the elderly and their access to online services 
 

 

Crime/Community Safety - activity by extremist political groups  

P
age 26



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 
  

Portfolio of the Board 

 

Membership  

1. Community Safety  
2. Communities and Neighbourhoods  

3. Regulatory Services (including Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing)  
4. Operational Services (including Citywide, bereavement, 

operational transport, refuse and street cleansing, parks 
management, grounds maintenance)  

5. Salford Community Leisure Client  
6. Cultural strategy  
7. to be the designated Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee  

8. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area. 

Councillor Dickman (Chair) 
Councillor Karen Garrido (Deputy Chair) 

Councillor Barnes 
Councillor Boshell 
Councillor Brabiner 

Councillor Fletcher 
Councillor Mullen 

Councillor Gina Reynolds 
Councillor Wain 
Councillor Walters 

Councillor Ward 
Councillor Warner 

 

P
age 27


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 20 February 2023 and matters arising
	4 Waste Contract Performance and Future Recycling Strategies (David Seager - Asst Dir, Operational & Community Services/ Head of Service, Streetscene and Parks)
	6 Work Programme 2022/23

